
Woodlands and Park Community Council 

Minutes of Meeting 

Wednesday 10 April 2024, Fred Paton Centre, Carrington Street, 7.30pm 

Present: Ruth Gillett (chair), Tom Johnstone (secretary), Gerry Doyle (treasurer), Stewart Leighton,  

In attendance: PC Barry McGlynn, Councillor Seonad Hoy, Councillor Ken Andrew, Ros Smith, Clare Crawford 
(minutes) 

1 Apologies: Derek Manson-Smith, Rosanne Davidson, Colin Ewen, Patricia Panther, Mariama Bah, Councillor 
Wardrop 

2 Police Report 
Tom Johnstone told PC McGlynn that there had been no emails at all from the police. PC McGlynn said 
something must be wrong with the system and gave him a paper copy of his report. Tom said he would scan it 
and circulate it. PC McGlynn said that the report could not be disseminated outside the meeting and asked if 
the minutes go public. Tom said that the minutes are published and pointed out that if the report had been sent 
to him in digital form it would have been copied only to the people who are on the mailing list. PC McGlynn 
gave his report. He then said there is an action plan to clamp down on e-bikes that have a direct throttle and are 
classed as mopeds and whose riders need a licence and insurance. There was discussion about the no right turn 
at Lynedoch Street in which Councillor Andrew said there had been a problem with cars doing the right turn 
from Woodlands Road despite the advisory sign and pedestrians not being aware that cars could come from that 
direction. There was also discussion about young men in high-powered cars racing along Woodlands Road and 
through the Park area and occasionally coming into Woodlands. It was agreed that there does not seem to be an 
obvious pattern that the police could intercept. PC McGlynn said he would mention the matter to his inspector. 
He reported that the police had been asked to do more patrols around Kelvingrove Park and the Museum 
following protesters smearing a statue. There have been reports about people impersonating police officers in 
order to scam people. There is a scam awareness week from 21 April. There was discussion about how to alert 
older people to scammers. Councillor Andrew said he has already raised with the police that there has been an 
issue in North Kelvin with individuals getting into closes, using service buzzers, and then waiting for deliveries 
to steal. He recommended that service buzzers, which used to be timed to Post Office deliveries, be turned off 
as these are now unreliable and that people be careful about who gets into the close. There was discussion 
about the number of other delivery systems in which Stewart Leighton said he was thinking of installing a 
camera. PC McGlynn said to be careful because doorbell cameras can be construed as being an invasion of 
neighbours‘ privacy. Stewart said that while he was preparing his infrastructure statement for Woodlands and 
Park Ruth Gillett had raised the issue of cyclists travelling fast down West Princes Street. He suggested that the 
council develop a safety training scheme for cyclists and wondered if the police might be interested. PC 
McGlynn said it would need resources and approval at inspector level. Clare Crawford said that the Woodlands 
Community Development Trust was running cycle courses and information was available on its website. There 
was discussion about bikes and e-bikes on pavements and how to discourage this, in which PC McGlynn said 
that, as with cars, police have to see an e-bike being taken on to a footpath. Stewart suggested notices on 
footpaths and in takeaways could be a start. He said there is only one part of a footpath where there is a shared 
surface, between Queens Crescent and St Georges Road, and the signage needs renewal.  

3 Minutes of 13 March Meeting 
Ruth Gillett asked that under item 17, AOCB, the text from the words ‘Tom said that, as background’ in line 21 
to the words ‘along with that’ in line 28 be cut, and Tom Johnstone agreed. With that amendment, the minutes 
were proposed as a correct record by Tom Johnstone, seconded by Ruth Gillett.  

4 Matters Arising 
There were no relevant matters arising.  

5 Kelvinbridge Mural 
Tom Johnstone reported that Brian Gannon of the West of Scotland Housing Association had attended the 
meeting on 20 March and had said that he would check at a meeting that same evening about whether or not 
WSHA would contribute £5,000 plus VAT. Jonathan Pickering of Glasgow City Council had said it might be 
possible, even though the deadline has passed, for the community council to get a placemaking grant if we 
applied for it and said he would send Tom further details but has not yet done so. Tom will chase him up on 



that. Ros Smith said the meeting that Brian had talked about was with the Woodlands and Garnethill Residents’ 
Association. They had agreed to it but are concerned about the £5,000 for the feasibility study and would like to 
know how that figure was arrived at. Stewart Leighton said the study would not just be for the mural but for the 
area in front of it, including possibly a community garden, to deter graffiti artists coming back. He had 
suggested asking the Woodlands Community Development Trust, which runs the community garden in West 
Princes Street, if they would be interested in taking that idea forward. Clare Crawford said that the WCDT had 
developed that garden on their own land and it would depend on the ownership of the land beside the mural. 
Stewart said that mapping the land would be part of the feasibility study and that there had been discussion 
about ownership at the meeting and he had suggested that Network Rail might be the likely owner of part of the 
land. Other issues that might crop up in the longer term are a potential tram or a light rail network because of 
the old Caledonian line and the Kelvingrove tunnel. Another possibility is the Chamber of Commerce proposal 
to convert the Argyll Line to light rail. The first step is to find out if the WCDT is interested and then explore a 
feasibility study to consider how extensive this might be. Ruth Gillett said that neighbours would have to be 
consulted and that Patricia Panther had been at the meeting. Councillor Andrew said Patricia had been quite 
positive about what she was hearing. He thinks she became a community councillor because of her concerns 
about what has been happening there. Aside from the issue of ownership, what is there is the old mural, now 
heavily graffitied, the shipping container, which needs to be removed, and a large area of inappropriate tarmac 
ground that he is concerned may have contamination underneath because it was obviously marshalling yards. 
In further discussion about a garden, Clare said the WCDT cannot afford to buy land and Councillor Hoy said it 
was quite an exposed area for a garden. Tom told Ros that the people who would be doing the feasibility study 
are called Yardworks and he can ask them for some sort of specification. Councillor Andrew said he would 
chase up the land ownership. He suspects Network Rail might own a bit of it.  

6 Trinity College Tower 
Councillor Andrew said he had spoken to someone involved in getting grants to have the tower repaired. It had 
been hoped that the work would be complete by May, but the more they repair the more they find to repair so 
now they think it is going to be August before they get the front door of Trinity open. He paid credit to a council 
officer who had helped to move matters along. 

7 Councillors’ Reports 
Councillor Andrew said he had little to report apart from the usual complaints about bins. Great Western Road 
where it was resurfaced from Napiershall Street to St Georges Cross has still not been lined. He has raised with 
NRS the fact that the surface is already peeling and is needing repair. He had raised the matter at the Hillhead 
Area Partnership. There are concerns in the Park area about a coffee stall at the bottom of the steps past Trinity 
Tower. As far as he is aware it does not have a licence to trade and he is chasing the matter up. Tom Johnstone 
said no application has been copied to him. Ruth Gillett said that the white paint on the bit of cardboard 
around a disabled bay in West Princes Street has just about disappeared.  
 Councillor Hoy reported that she and Councillor Wardrop had gone on a walkabout with Ros Smith and the 
residents’ group. They went to Baliol Street and Lane, Carnarvon Street, Ashley Street, West Princes Street and 
discussed issues around street lighting. They have a list of things they are working on from that. Ros Smith said 
the Baliol Street problem should be quite simple—a broken lid on one of the large bins. Stewart Leighton said it 
would be useful for the infrastructure statement to have a copy of what Councillors Hoy and Wardrop had noted 
on their walkabout. Councillor Hoy said she hopes most are quick fixes but anything bigger or longer-term she 
will pass on to him. Stewart said he had suggested that the Taylor bins should be contained within a bin hub 
and nibbing to prevent cars parking right at the corner and preventing pedestrians making a direct crossing. In 
discussion about Baliol Lane and Ashley Lane, Stewart said that Baliol Lane was in need of resurfacing and 
Gerry Doyle pointed out that Ashley Lane was the rat run and that there is a one-way section in Baliol Lane so 
that traffic cannot exit into Woodlands Road. Councillor Andrew said it is probable that it is unadopted so it is 
owned by the owners of the properties, and the likelihood of the council adopting it is close to zero unless the 
owners brought it up to council standard.  
  
8 Kelvingrove Park 
Nothing was reported. 

9 Dropped Kerbs 
Stewart Leighton said that there had been a presentation at the meeting of the Hillhead Area Partnership the 
previous day on Connecting Woodside, but some matters relate to our area, particularly West Princes Street. He 
had raised a detailed design issue and had reiterated that it there is to be nibbing on West Princes Street at 
junctions then adjacent streets will have to be included. Unless that is done, vehicles will park hard in front of 



footpaths preventing pedestrians crossing. He also asked that he be sent the presentation material, which had 
arrived that day, so he will circulate it for everyone to have a look at. 

10 Park Circus Lane 
Nothing was reported. 

11 Citizens’ Panels 
Nothing was reported. 

12 Cleansing 
Nothing was reported. 

13 Correspondence and Licensing 
Licensing: nothing was reported. 
Correspondence: Tom Johnstone said that Steven Downing and Lawrence O’Neill are both leaving. Steven had 
sent on 20 March a ‘polite reminder’ that according to the Scheme for the Establishment of Community 
Councils ‘the secretary should coordinate the creation of an agenda and the draft minutes from the previous 
meeting at least seven days before the date of the next meeting to all members of community council’. Tom said 
he cannot do that as he does not get draft minutes early enough and asked if these can be done almost as soon 
as the meeting that they record is over. Clare Crawford said that in principle that is a good idea and that she will 
be standing down in June. Ruth Gillett and Tom agreed that the community council has enough money to 
employ someone. Tom said a problem about the seven days is that there is always a rush of correspondence just 
before a meeting. He said that Councillor Andrew seems to have sorted out the Marigold. A local resident has 
written about the continued use of the basement suite at 4 Lynedoch Place as a gym after permission was 
refused and the appeal against the refusal was dismissed. He thinks that since there is an existing open 
enforcement complaint dating from 2021 the community council could do an online one. Councillor Hoy said 
that Councillor Wardrop had investigated the matter previously and had sent pictures to council officials. 
Councillor Hoy said she is happy to see what she can do and asked Tom to ask the resident to send the email to 
her. In reply to a comment by Gerry Doyle, Tom said that the cost of the noticeboard will be something over 
£200 and an invoice has not yet been raised because the perso who is dealing with it is on holiday. He has 
asked for the invoice to be emailed to Gerry.  

14 Finance 
Gerry Doyle said there was nothing to report. 

15 Electric Charging Points 
Nothing was reported. 

16 Air Pollution 
Councillor Hoy said that Councillor Wardrop had asked for a report and has been assured it is being worked on 
and will be with her shortly. As soon as there is an update it will be shared. Stewart Leighton said the LEZ seems 
to be still stirring up a lot of controversy about loss of economic activity in the city centre and environs. He gave 
a history of the LEZ’s origins in the UK-wide Environment Act of 1995 and Glasgow’s subsequent report of about 
1998 or 1999 and suggested that the council set up a rebuttal unit to state some of the facts and the efforts that 
are involved in trying to improve the physical environment.  

17 AOCB 
Ruth Gillett showed a photograph of a cat and asked people to look out for him. He had escaped from his 
basket in Queens Crescent the previous Monday and is still missing. 
 Ros Smith reported that there is an annual general meeting of the West of Scotland Housing Association’s 
Woodlands and Garnethill Residents’ Association to be held towards the end of April or in May, venue to be 
confirmed, and everyone is welcome. 

18 Planning 
Nothing was reported. 

19 Date of Next Meeting 
Wednesday 8 May 2024 at 7.30pm in the Fred Paton Centre, Carrington Street. 


